






























































HYDROCODONE BITARTRATE/APAP 4 11 $15.48
HYOSCYAMINE SULFATE 1 5 $3.55
IBUPROFEN 18 86 $65.34
INSULIN REGULAR, HUMAN 4 40 $133.42
LACTULOSE 5 35 $53.81
LEVOFLOXACIN 1 7 $81.71
LIDOCAINE 3 66 $1,125.82
LIDOCAINE HCL 1 7 $3.49
LISINOPRIL 5 135 $32.55
LORAZEPAM 3 37 $13.72
METHADONE HCL 32 687 $327.38
METRONIDAZOLE 3 52 $22.85
MORPHINE SULFATE 3 33 $75.32
MYCOPHENOLATE MOFETIL 10 210 $4,758.53
NITROFURANTOIN MACROCRYSTAL 5 92 $186.02
NITROFURANTOIN/NITROFURAN MAC 1 7 $26.94
NORTRIPTYLINE HCL 5 150 $24.15
NYSTATIN 1 3 $23.19
OMEPRAZOLE 9 243 $974.71
ONDANSETRON HCL 1 2 $321.11
OXYCODONE HCL 2 30 $51.08
PANTOPRAZOLE SODIUM 2 33 $126.55
PIPERACILLIN/TAZOBACTAM/DEX-IS 3 10 $825.58
PNEUMOCOCCAL 23-VAL P-SAC VAC 1 1 $33.73
POLYETHYLENE GLYCOL 3350 3 45 $46.26
POTASSIUM CHLORIDE 2 5 $8.78
PREDNISONE 21 412 $112.14
PREGABALIN 13 306 $1,172.84
PROCHLORPERAZINE MALEATE 1 3 $6.10
PROPOXYPHENE HCL 2 14 $17.52
| QUETIAPINE FUMARATE 11 330 $2,354.59
RANITIDINE HCL 2 60 $13.86
RISEDRONATE SODIUM 6 168 $388.63
SILVER SULFADIAZINE 3 19 $17.88
SODIUM CL 0.9PC IRRIG. SOLN 8 80 $441.60
SULFAMETHOXAZOLE/TRIMETHOPRIM 15 303 $82.15
TIZANIDINE HCL 4 105 $197.60

22




TRAMADOL HCL 2 5 $8.08
TRAZODONE HCL 1 15 $3.33
VANCOMYCIN HCL 5 56 $5,212.97
ZINC OXIDE 2 10 $17.53

These claims also include, for example, claims Omnicare submitted, or caused to be submitted,

for drugs delivered to one Medicare patient in a Mariner/Sava nursing home in Massachusetts:

ZYPREXA 52 1560 $13,861.39
MIRTAZAPINE 32 960 $865.43
LEVOTHYROXINE SODIUM 31 930 $323.00
LIPITOR 3 90 $246.09
METOPROLOL TARTRATE 27 784 $239.62
PROTONIX 1 30 $113.66
TAMIFLU 1 14 $113.31
TOBRADEX I 10 $68.34
SYNTHROID 2 60 $32.75
TOBRAMYCIN SULFATE 1 1 $8.34

Count One

(False Claims Act: Presentation Of False Claims, 31 U.S.C. § 3729(a)(1);

Against Omnicare, Inc.)

62.  Plaintiff United States repeats and realleges each allegation in each of the

preceding paragraphs as if fully set forth herein.

63.  Asaresult of Omnicare’s kickback payments to induce the other defendants to

purchase, order, or recommend or arrange for the purchasing or ordering of drugs from Omnicare

for Mariner and Sava nursing home patients, in violation of the anti-kickback statute, 42 U.S.C.

§ 1320a-7b(b)(2), all of the claims Omnicare presented, or caused to be presented, to Medicare

and Medicaid for those drugs are false or fraudulent. Accordingly, Omnicare knowingly
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presented, or caused to be presented, false or fraudulent claims to officials of the United States in
violation of 31 U.S.C. § 3729(a)(1).

64. By virtue of the false or fraudulent claims Omnicare presented, or caused to be
presented, the United States has suffered actual damages and is entitled to recover treble
damages plus a civil monetary penalty for each false claim.

Count Two
(False Claims Act: Making Or Using False Records Or Statements To Cause Claims To Be
Paid, 31 U.S.C. § 3729(2)(2);
Against Omnicare, Inc.)

65.  Plaintiff United States repeats and realleges each allegation in each of the
preceding paragraphs as if fully set forth herein.

66. Omnicare knowingly made, used, or caused to be made or used, false records or
statements to cause the United States to pay or approve false or fraudulent claims, in violation of
31 U.S.C. § 3729(a)(2). The false records or statements were the false certifications and
representations of full compliance with all federal and state laws and regulations prohibiting
fraudulent acts and false reporting, including but not limited to the anti-kickback statute, 42
U.S.C. § 1320a-7b. Omnicare made or caused to be made such false certifications and
representations in agreements under state Medicaid programs and Medicare Part D when seeking
to ensure that Medicaid and Medicare would reimburse for the drugs that Omnicare dispensed to
Mariner and Sava nursing home patients.

67. By virtue of the false records or statements Omnicare made, used, or caused to be

made or used, the United States has suffered actual damages and is entitled to recover treble

damages plus a civil monetary penalty for each false claim.
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Count Three
(False Claims Act: Making Or Using False Records Or Statements To Conceal, Avoid, Or
Decrease An Obligation To Pay Money To The United States, 31 U.S.C. § 3729(a)(7);
Against Omnicare, Inc.)

68.  Plaintiff United States repeats and realleges each allegation in each of the
preceding paragraphs as if fully set forth herein.

69. Omnicare knowingly made, used, or caused to be made or used, false records or
statements to conceal, avoid, or decrease Medicare Part D sponsors’ obligations to pay or
transmit money or property to the Government, in violation of 31 U.S.C. § 3729(a)(7).

70.  The false records or statements were the false certifications and representations
Omnicare made or caused to be made in Medicare Part D agreements when seeking to ensure
that Medicare would reimburse for the drugs that Omnicare dispensed to Mariner and Sava
nursing home patients. Those agreements contained certifications and representations of full
compliance with all federal and state laws and regulations prohibiting fraudulent acts and false
reporting, including but not limited to the anti-kickback statute, 42 U.S.C. § 1320a-7b.

71.  The false records or statements were submitted to the United States in conjunction
with sponsors’ agreements to operate one or more plans pursuant to Part D of the Medicare
program, which includes an annual reconciliation process and risk-sharing arrangements.
Consequently, any low-income subsidy and reinsurance payments made to Part D sponsors as a
result of Omnicare’s violations of the anti-kickback statute were owed to CMS in the
reconciliation process, as well as any risk-sharing amounts resulting from Omnicare’s anti-

kickback statute violations that were paid to Part D sponsors under the risk-sharing

arrangements.
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72. By virtue of the false records or statements Omnicare made, used, or caused to be
made or used, the United States has suffered actual damages and is entitled to recover treble
damages plus a civil monetary penalty for each false claim.

Count Four
(False Claims Act: Causing The Presentation Of False Claims, 31 U.S.C. § 3729(a)(1);
Against Rubin Schron, Leonard Grunstein, Murray Forman, Mariner Health Care, Inc.,
and SavaSeniorCare Administrative Services, LLC)

73.  Plaintiff United St_ates repeats and realleges each allegation in each of the
preceding paragraphs as if fully set forth herein.

74.  As aresult of the solicitation and receipt by defendants Schron, Grunstein,
Forman, Mariner, and Sava of Omnicare’s kickback payments to obtain referrals of Mariner and
Sava nursing home patients for drug purchases, in violation of the anti-kickback statute, 42
U.S.C. § 1320a-7b(b)(1), all of the claims Omnicare made, or caused to be made, to Medicaid
and Medicare for those drugs are false or fraudulent. Accordingly, defendants Schron,
Grunstein, Forman, Mariner, and Sava knowingly caused false or fraudulent claims to be
presented to officials of the United States in violation of 31 U.S.C. § 3729(a)(1).

75. By virtue of the false or fraudulent claims that defendants Schron, Grunstein,
Forman, Mariner, and Sava knowingly caused to be presented, the United States has suffered

actual damages and is entitled to recover treble damages plus a civil monetary penalty for each

false claim.
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Count Five
(False Claims Act: Making Or Using False Records Or Statements To Cause Claims To Be
Paid, 31 U.S.C. § 3729(a)(2);
Against Rubin Schron, Leonard Grunstein, Murray Forman, Mariner Health Care, Inc.,
and SavaSeniorCare Administrative Services, LLC)

76.  Plaintiff United States repeats and realleges each allegation in each of the
preceding paragraphs as if fully set forth herein.

71.  As aresult of the solicitation and receipt by defendants Schron, Grunstein,
Forman, Mariner, and Sava of Omnicare’s kickback payments to obtain referrals of Mariner and
Sava nursing home patients for drug purchases, in violation of the anti-kickback statute, 42
U.S.C. § 1320a-7b(b)(2), defendants Schron, Grunstein, Forman, Mariner, and Sava knowingly
caused false records or statements to be made or used to cause the United States to pay or
approve false or fraudulent claims. The false records or statements were the false certifications
and representations of full compliance with all federal and state laws and regulations prohibiting
fraudulent acts and false reporting, including but not limited to the anti-kickback statute, 42
U.S.C. § 1320a-7b. Defendants Schron, Grunstein, Forman, Mariner, and Sava caused such false
certifications and representations to be made in agreements under state Medicaid programs and
Medicare Part D when seeking to ensure that Medicaid and Medicare would reimburse for the
drugs that Omnicare dispensed to Mariner and Sava nursing home patients.

78. By virtue of the false records or statements defendants Schron, Grunstein,
Forman, Mariner, and Sava caused to be made or used, the United States has suffered actual

damages and is entitled to recover treble damages plus a civil monetary penalty for each false

claim.
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Count Six
(False Claims Act: Conspiracy To Submit False Claims, 31 U.S.C. § 3729(a)(3);
Against All Defendants)

79.  Plaintiff United States repeats and realleges each allegation in each of the
preceding paragraphs as if fully set forth herein.

80.  Each of the defendants conspired with the other defendants to arrange for
Omnicare to make kickback payments in exchange for referrals of Mariner and Sava nursing
home patients for drug purchases, in violation of the anti-kickback statute, 42 U.S.C. § 1320a-
7b(b)(2), thereby causing all of the claims, from on or shortly after December 10, 2004, through
the present, to Medicaid and Medicare for those drugs, to be false or fraudulent. Accordingly,
each of the defendants conspired to defraud the United States by getting false or fraudulent
claims allowed or paid, in violation of 31 U.S.C. § 3729(a)(3).

81. By virtue of the false or fraudulent claims defendants conspired to get allowed or
paid, the United States has suffered actual damages and is entitled to recover treble damages plus
a civil monetary penalty for each false claim.

Count Seven
(False Claims Act: Making Or Using False Records Or Statements To Conceal, Avoid, Or
Decrease An Obligation To Pay Money To The United States, 31 U.S.C. § 3729(a)(7);
Against Rubin Schron, Leonard Grunstein, Murray Forman, Mariner Health Care, Inc.,
and SavaSeniorCare Administrative Services, LLC)

82.  Plaintiff United States repeats and realleges each allegation in each of the

preceding paragraphs as if fully set forth herein.

83. Defendants Schron, Grunstein, Forman, Mariner, and Sava knowingly caused to

be made or used false records or statements to conceal, avoid, or decrease Medicare Part D
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sponsors’ obligations to pay or transmit money or property to the Government, in violation of 31
U.S.C. § 3729(a)(7).

84.  The false records or statements were the false certifications and representations
Defendants Schron, Grunstein, Forman, Mariner, and Sava caused to be made in agreements
between Omnicare and Medicare Part D sponsors when seeking to ensure that Medicare would
reimburse for the drugs that Omnicare dispensed to Mariner and Sava nursing home patients.
Those agreements contained certifications and representations of full compliance with all federal
and state laws and regulations prohibiting fraudulent acts and false reporting, including but not
limited to the anti-kickback statute, 42 U.S.C. § 1320a-7b.

85.  The false records or statements were submitted to the United States in conjunction
with Part D sponsors’ transmittal of cost information to CMS for use in the annual reconciliation
process. Consequently, if CMS demanded a post-reconciliation payment from any such Part D
sponsor, it demanded too little.

86. By virtue of the false records or statements defex_ldants Schron, Grunstein,
Forman, Mariner, and Sava caused to be made or used, the United States has suffered actual
damages and is entitled to recover treble damages plus a civil monetary penalty for each false

claim.

Count Eight
(Unjust Enrichment And Disgorgement; Against Omnicare, Inc.)

87.  Plaintiff United States repeats and realleges each allegation in each of the
preceding paragraphs as if fully set forth herein.
88.  This is a claim for the recovery of monies by which Omnicare has been unjustly

enriched.

29



89. By directly or indirectly obtaining government funds to which it was not entitled,
Omnicare was unjustly enriched, and is liable to account for and to disgorge such amounts, or the
proceeds therefrom, which are to be determined at trial, to the United States.

Count Nine
(Payment By Mistake; Against Omnicare, Inc.)

90.  Plaintiff United States repeats and realleges each allegation in each of the
preceding paragraphs as if fully set forth herein.

91. This is a claim for the recovery of monies paid by the United States to Omnicare
as a result of mistaken understandings of fact.

92.  The false claims that Omnicare presented to the United States were based upon
mistaken or erroneous understandings of material fact.

93.  The United States, acting in reasonable reliance on the accuracy and truthfulness
of the information contained in the claims, paid Omnicare, directly or indirectly, certain sums of
money to which Omnicare was not entitled, and Omnicare is thus liable to account for and to pay
such amounts to the United States.

Praver For Relief

WHEREFORE, the United States demands and prays that judgment be entered in favor of
the United States as follows: /
1. On Counts One, Two, and Three under the False Claims Act, against Omnicare,

Inc., for the amount of the United States’ damages, trebled as required by law, and such civil

penalties as are required by law, together with such further relief as may be just and proper.
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2. On Counts Four, Five, and Seven under the False Claims Act, against Rubin
Schron, Leonard Grunstein, Murray Forman, Mariner Health Care, Inc., and SavaSeniorCare
Administrative Services, LLC, for the amount of the United States’ damages, trebled as required
by law, and such civil penalties as are required by law, together with such further relief as may
be just and proper.

3. On Count Six under the False Claims Act, against all defendants, for the amount
of the United States’ damages, trebled as required by law, and such civil penalties as are required
by law, together with such further relief as may be just and proper.

4, On Counts Eigﬁt and Nine, against Omnicare, Inc., for unjust enrichment and
payment by mistake, for the damages sustained and/or amounts by which Omnicare was unjustly
enriched or by which Omnicare retained illegally obtained monies, plus interest, costs, and

expenses, and such further relief as may be just and proper.
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Dated: March 4, 2009

Respectfully submitted,

MICHAEL F. HERTZ
Acting Assistant Attorney General

MICHAEL J. SULLIVAN
United States Attorney

GREGG SHAPIRO

CHRISTINE WICHERS
Assistant United States Attorneys
One Courthouse Way, Suite 9200

Boston, MA 02210

(617) 748-3100

JOYCE R. BRANDA

DANIEL R. ANDERSON
LAURIE A. OBEREMBT
Attorneys, Civil Division

U.S. Department of Justice

P.O. Box 261, Ben Franklin Station
Washington, D.C. 20044

(202) 514-3345
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